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FLOOR, UNIT NO-3B, KOLKATA-700017 



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENT/ DISCLAIMER 

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to 

comprehend our prospect and take informed investment decisions. This Report and other 

statements - written and oral - that we periodically make, contain forward-looking statements that 

set out anticipated results based on the management's plans and assumptions. We have tried 

wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as 'anticipate', 'estimate', 

'expects', 'projects', 'intends', 'plans', 'believes', and words of similar substance in connection with 

any discussion of future performance. 

We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realized, although we believe 

we have been prudent in assumptions. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertainties 

and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialise, or 

should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from those 

anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind. 

We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result 

of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 49TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE 

SHAREHOLDERS OF KABIRDAS INVESTMENTS LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, THE 21ST 

DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2023 AT 03:00 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC)/OTHER AUDIO-

VISUAL MEANS (OAVM) & ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23. 

 

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Ordinary 

Resolution. 
 

1. To consider and adopt (a) the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 

31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and (b) the audited consolidated 

financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the report of Auditors 

thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions: 
 

(a) “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be 

and are hereby considered and adopted.”  
 

(b) “RESOLVED THAT the audited consolidated financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2023 and the report of Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered 

and adopted.” 
 

2. To appoint a director in place of Ms. Nupur Mehta (DIN-08687047) who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers herself for re-appointment. 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Nupur Mehta 

(DIN-08687047) who retires by rotation at this meeting be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 

Company and that her period of office be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation” 
 

3. To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in this regard to consider 

and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 

The provisions regarding annual ratification of the appointment of auditor as specified under section 139(1) 

was omitted by Section 40 of the Companies Amendment Act, 2017 read with Notification S.O. 1833(E) dated 

and effective from 7th May 2018. Therefor the amendment makes it clear that ratification of the appointment 

of the Statutory Auditor at every AGM is now not required anymore. 

 

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as Special 

Resolution 

 

ITEM NO. 4: INCREASE IN REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 197,198,199 and all other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act 2013, if any, and Schedule V of the said act as amended up to date, consent of the 

shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for a remuneration of `5,00,000/- per month with 

effect from 01.04.2023 to Shri. Zubin Dipak Mehta, Managing Director as specified under Schedule V of the 

act and or any amendment that may be notified by the government for the Companies having inadequate 

profits / no profits with permission to the Board of Directors to increase, reduce or alter or vary the terms of 

remuneration and perquisites including monitory value thereof and from time to time and in such manner 

as the Board of Directors may deem fit so as not to exceed the remuneration limits as specified in Schedule 

V of the said act or any amendment that may be notified by the government in that behalf.” 
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Terms of Remuneration 

i) Salary- `5,00,000 per month.  

ii) He is entitled to use Company’s car for official purposes, telephone, tele-fax, and audio and video 

conferencing and other communication facilities at residence and these will not be included in the 

computation of perquisites and allowances for the purpose of calculating the said ceiling. Company’s 

contribution to Provident Fund, super-annuation Fund, Gratuity payable as per the rules of the Company 

and Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure shall not be included in the Computation of limits for the 

perquisites and allowances as aforesaid. If in any financial year, the Company has no profit or its profits are 

inadequate the above remuneration is paid as the minimum remuneration subject to the provisions of 

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.   

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the Company 

will pay remuneration by way of salary, allowances, perquisites and benefits as specified above, subject to 

obtaining requisite approvals.’’ 

 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the scope and quantum of remuneration specified herein above, may be 

enhanced, enlarged or varied by the Board of directors, in the light of and in conformity with any amendments 

to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and / or the rules and regulations made there under 

and/or such guidelines as may be announced by the Government of India from time to time.’’ 

 

ITEM NO. 5: APPOINTMENT OF MS. RUBY BHALOTIA (DIN: 00711267) AS AN INDEPENDENT 

DIRECTOR 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 152 and any other applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with Schedule IV to the Act, the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any other Rules made there under and Regulation 16(1)(b), 

Regulation 25(2A) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force) and in accordance with Articles of Association of the company, Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 

00711267), who was recommended and proposed to be appointed as Independent Director (in the capacity 

of a Non-Executive Independent Director) of the company by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21-

08-2023 and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and whose term of office 

shall commence from this ensuing Annual General Meeting (‘AGM') and in respect of whom the company has 

received a Notice in writing from a Member and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria 

for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 

Non-Executive Director of the company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing 

from 21-09-2023, whose period of office will not be liable to determination by retirement of directors by 

rotation. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the company be and is hereby authorized to do all 

acts and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SEC.102 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ITEM NO. 4 

Mr. Zubin Dipak Mehta is the Managing Director of the Company since 01.06.2022 and is actively guiding 

the board members in all aspects of the Company’s activities. He has been instrumental to the Company’s 

growth and the efforts taken by him has turned around the Company by his intensive research and analysis 

into profits in the fields of Investing Activities. 

 

The appointment as Managing Director of the Company is valid till 31.05.2027. Hence the Board of Directors 

recommended the above said resolutions for your approval. Also the Board considered the matter of 

Remuneration in its meeting held on 21.08.2023 and has recommended a sum of `5,00,000/- to be paid as 

remuneration per month as per the resolution placed before you. The Board of Directors recommends the 

resolution for your approval. 
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His remuneration is as under: 

Basic       3,00,000 

HRA       1,50,000 

Transport Allowance 25,000 

Medical Allowances 25,000 

Total Remuneration  5,00,000 

Except Mr. Zubin D. Mehta no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel of the company and their relatives 

thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise in the proposed resolution. 

Item No.5 

Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267), on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee was recommended and proposed to be appointed as Independent Director (in the capacity of a 

Non-Executive Independent Director) of the company with effect from 21-09-2023 subject to approval by the 

Shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association and sections 149(6), 161 and 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and Regulation 16(1)(b), Regulation 25(2A) and other 

applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) shall hold the office from the date of the ensuing AGM on 21-09-2023. 

The company has received a Notice in writing from a Member and who has submitted a declaration that he 

meets the criteria for independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act for being appointed as an 

Independent Non-Executive Director at the ensuing AGM. Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) possesses 

requisite knowledge, experience and skill for the position of Independent Director as per required criteria 

under the Act and rules & regulations made thereunder. 

Based on the recommendation received from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in view of her 

knowledge, skills and invaluable expertise related to the industry in Finance and Taxation of the company, it 

is proposed to appoint Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the 

company in terms of section 149 read with section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013. In terms of sections 149 

and 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) is not liable to retire by rotation. 

Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267), if appointed, will hold the office for a consecutive term of 5 years 

commencing from 21-09-2023. 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) Independent Non-Executive 

Director is available for inspection by members at the Registered Office of the company on any working day 

during working hours between 9.30am to 6.30pm. 

Except Ms. Ruby Bhalotia (DIN: 00711267) no other Director, Key Managerial Personnel of the company and 

their relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise in the proposed resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommend passing of the resolution set out in Item No. 5 of this Notice. 

By Order of the Board, 

For Kabirdas Investments Limited 

Place: Kolkata  

Date:  21st August, 2023 

Sd/- 

Vishal Shah 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
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NOTES: 

 

1. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of copy of PAN card to the 

Company/ Depository Participants as the case may be. Members holding shares in physical form should 

submit their PAN details to the Company/RTA.  

 

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 15th September, 

2023 to 21st September, 2023 (both days inclusive).  

 

3. Members are requested to notify immediately change of address, if any, to the registrar and transfer agent of 

the company and provide their e-mail ID.  

 

4. Members who have shareholdings in physical form are requested to submit their shares for dematerialization 

at your registered depository at the earliest. 

 

5. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS  

5.1. In view of the prevailing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the “MCA”) vide its 

General Circulars No. 11/2022, dated 28.12. 2022, 10/2022, dated 28.12. 2022 14/2020, No. 

17/2020, No. 20/2020 and No. 02/2021 dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020, 5th May, 2020 and 

13th January, 2021 respectively and by General Circular No. 2/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 (hereinafter, 

collectively referred as the “MCA Circulars”) has permitted the holding of Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM), without the physical 

presence of the Members at a common venue. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide 

its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May, 2022 read with Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/ P/2021/11 dated 15th January, 2021 and Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/ 2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 (SEBI Circulars) has granted 

relaxation in respect of sending physical copies of annual report to the shareholders and requirement 

of proxy for general meetings held through electronic mode. In compliance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 49th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company is being 

held through VC/OAVM on Thursday, 21th day of September, 2023 at 03:00 p.m. Thus, members can 

attend and participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM following the instructions given in the Notice of 

AGM.   

 

5.2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 

dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021 and December 28, 2022 the 

Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM.  

 

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. 

The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the 

date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.  

 

5.3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 

facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members 

on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 

more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 

Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 

account of first come first served basis.  

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com


 Kabirdas Investments Limited       Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street 

CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598    Unit No-3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700017 
 Ph. No.: 033-22825513 

 Email: kilgroup2010@gmail.com 

www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com  

KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Notice 6 | Page 

 
 

 

5.4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 

of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5.5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend 

and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 

and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President 

of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and 

cast their votes through e-voting.  

 

5.6. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, no Route Map is being provided with the Notice. 

 

5.7. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 

Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 

Exchanges i.e. MSEI Limited at www.msei.in. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of 

CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e., 

www.evotingindia.com.  

 

5.8. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020.  

 

5.9. The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:  

 

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on 18th September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 20th 

September, 2023 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 14th September, 2023, 

may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 

thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the member, the member shall not be allowed 

to change it subsequently.  

 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue.  

 

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the voting 

period  

 

(iv) Click on “Shareholders” tab.  

 

(v) Now Enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  

 

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company, excluding the special characters. OR  

d. Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 

https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you 

successfully log-in to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed 

directly to cast your vote electronically. 

 

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.  

 

(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 

an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
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(viii) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: For Members holding shares in Demat Form 

and Physical Form PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 

requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the 

PAN field.  

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s before the 

number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. E.g. If your name is Ramesh 

Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. DOB Enter the Date of 

Birth as recorded in your demat account with the depository or in the company records for your 

folio in dd/mm/yyyy format Bank Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat 

account with the depository or Account in the company records for your folio. Number  

• Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to Login. (DBD)  

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then please enter the member-

id / folio number in the Bank Account Number details field as mentioned in above instruction (iv).  

 

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(x) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note 

that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

 

(xi) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice.  

 

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. “Kabirdas Investments Limited” on which 

you choose to vote.  

 

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.  

 

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.  

 

(xv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

(xvii) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on 

the Voting page.  

 

(xviii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.  

 

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can 

be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app 

while Remote Voting on your mobile.  
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(xx) Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians:  

 

• Institutional shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.  

• After receiving the login details, they have to create a compliance user which should be created 

using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) 

for which they wish to vote on.  

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 

favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same.  

• Alternatively, Non-Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory 

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

droliapravin@yahoo.co.in, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the 

CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.  

 

(xxi) If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the e-Voting System, 

you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at 

www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 

contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi (022-23058542).  

 

(xxii) All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 

Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 

Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-

23058738) or Mr. Bhavesh Pimputkar (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 

THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE 

RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE: 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- Send a mail to the Company and Registrars & Share Transfer Agent of the 

Company, MCS Share Transfer Agent Ltd. at kilgroup2010@gmail.com and mcssta@rediffmail.com 

respectively along with the scanned copy of the request letter duly signed by sole/first shareholder 

quoting the Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 

(self- attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy Aadhar Card) for 

registering email address. 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email 

address. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:  

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL 

e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under 

shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be 

available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed.  
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2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.  

 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 

any disturbance during the meeting.  

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 

via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It 

is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 

glitches.  

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to meeting mentioning 

their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

kilgroup2010@gmail.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat 

account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at kilgroup2010@gmail.com. These queries 

will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting.  

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: -  

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

Remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 

shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.  

 

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 

same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 

cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 

available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.  

 

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.  

 

5.10. Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together 

with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote 

through e-mail at droliapravin@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com on 

or before 21st September 2023 till 5 p.m. without which the vote shall not be treated as valid. 

 

5.11. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 14th September, 2023. A person who is not a member 

as on cut-off date should treat this notice for information purpose only.  

 

5.12. The notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the members, whose names appear in the register 

of members / beneficial owners as at closing hours of business, on 17th August, 2023.  

 

5.13. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of 14th 

September, 2023. The facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective 

of the number of joint holders.  
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5.14. Notice of AGM along with the process, instructions and the manner of conducting e-voting is being 

sent electronically to all the members whose e-mail IDs are registered with the Company / Depository 

Participant(s).  

 

5.15. Investors who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email and 

holds the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 17th August, 2023 are requested to send the written / email 

communication to the Company at kilgroup2010@gmail.com  by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID 

and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting. 

 

5.16. Sri Pravin Kumar Drolia (Prop. Of M/s. DROLIA & COMPANY) of Kolkata, Practicing Company 

Secretaries (C.P. No. 1362) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting 

process and voting at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit, not later 

than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 

favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall 

countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

5.17. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website at 

www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com and website of CDSL and same will be communicated to the 

stock exchanges where the company shares are listed viz. MSEI Ltd & CSE Ltd.  

By Order of the Board, 

For Kabirdas Investments Limited 

Place: Kolkata   

Date:  21st August, 2023 

Sd/- 

Vishal Shah 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

  

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com
mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com


 Kabirdas Investments Limited       Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street 

CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598    Unit No-3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700017 
 Ph. No.: 033-22825513 

 Email: kilgroup2010@gmail.com 

www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com  

KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Notice 11 | Page 

 
 

 

ANNEXURE TO AGM NOTICE 

  

The Statement of disclosures pursuant to Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings and 

Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended, is as under: 

 

1 Name of the Director Ms. Ruby Bhalotia 

2 DIN 00711267 

3 Residencial Address 61/30/1 Moore Avenue, Kolkata: 

700040 

4 Date of Birth 29.12.1972 

5 Qualification Practicing Chartered Accountant 

(FCA: 069930)  

6 Brief Resume of the Director She is a Practicing Chartered 
Accountant with an experience of 

more than 5 years in the field of 

Accounts and Taxation and various 

incidental Laws thereunder. 

 
She is dedicated and knowledgeable 

in her field with an expert opinion.   
7 Expertise in specific functional area Financial and Taxation 

8 Date of first appointment in the current 

designation 

NA 

9 Shareholding in the company NIL 

10 Directorships in other companies NIL 

11 Inter-se relationship between Directors and 
other Key Managerial Personnel 

NA 

12 Number of Meetings of the Board attended NIL 

13 Details of remuneration last drawn NIL 

14 Names of listed entities in which the Director 

also holds the directorship and the membership 
of Committees of the board 

NIL 

15 Names of other public companies in which the 

Director also holds the directorship and the 

membership of Committees of the board 

NIL 
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ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

 

 

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period :  

 

Please read the e-voting instructions of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting carefully 

before voting electronically.  

 

These details and instructions form an integral part of the Notice dated 21st August, 

2023 for the Annual General Meeting to be held on 21th September, 2023. 

 

 

EVSN 

 

User ID 

 

Password 

230818010 Please refer to Point No. 5.9  of e-voting 

instructions 

Commencement of remote 

e-voting  

  End of remote e-voting  Password 

From 9 AM (IST) on 

September 18, 2023 

Up to 5 PM (IST) on 

September 20, 2023 

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To,  

The Shareholders, 

Your directors submit their 49TH ANNUAL REPORT together with the Audited Statements 

for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS  

The summarized financials of your Company are given in the table below. 

(Figures in Thousands) 

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Interest Income 672.11 1,648.63 

Dividend Income 1,379.81 1,233.22 

Net gain on fair value changes 174.73 1,530.60 

Other Income 0.89 16.85 

Total Income 2,227.54 4,429.29 

Less: Total Expenses 6,122.27 3,219.62 

Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional Items & 
Taxation 

(3,894.72) 1,209.68 

Finance Charges - - 

Gross Profit (3,894.72) 1,209.68 

Depreciation - - 

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (3,894.72) 1,209.68 

Less: Tax Expenses   

• Current Tax 1,720.76 2,971.22 

• Deferred Tax - - 

• Short provision for earlier year tax 35.20 - 

• TDS receivable written off 2.05 - 

MAT Credit Entitlement - - 

Net Profit After Tax (5,652.72) (1,761.54) 

Profit/(Loss) brought forward from 
previous year 

34,304.04 61,294.02 

Operating Adjustments - 5.26 

Transfer from/to Retained Earning (12,660.56) (25,233.69) 

Profit/(Loss) carried to Balance Sheet 15,990.76 34,304.04 
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2. COMPANY’S FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW 

During the year under review, the Company has achieved total revenue from operation of 

` 2,227.54 as against ` 4,429.29 in the previous year registering a decrease of 50.29%. 

The Company has incurred a Net Loss of ` 5,652.72 as against ` 1,761.54 in the previous 

year. The Director of the Company hope to increase the performance of the Company and 

wishes for growth and profit for next Financial Year. 
 

3. STATE OF AFFAIRS AS 

The Company registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non – Banking Financial 

Company and engaged in the financial activities as permitted. There has been no change 

in the business of Company during the financial year under review. In the running 

financial year your directors are taking all reasonable steps to increase the business of 

the company without compromising the Standard rules of the company to evaluate the 

borrowers before lending fresh money to either existing or to new customers. 
 

4. ACCOUNTING POLICY 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

read together with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as 

amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act and the provisions of Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(SEBI).  
 

5. DIVIDEND: 

With a view to conserve capital, given the challenging situation caused by the Covid-19 

pandemic on the market of Indian Economy, the Board of Directors has not recommended 

any dividend on Equity Shares of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 

2023 
 

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

The Company after tax has transferred to Special Reserve, in term of Section 45 (1C) of 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, during the Financial Year 2022-23.  
 

7. CAPITAL STRUCTURE: 

The capital Structure of the Company as on 31st March, 2023: 

(Figures in Thousands) 

SHARE CAPITAL Amount 

1. Authorized Share Capital: 

1,10,00,000 Equity Shares @ Re. 1/- each: 11,000.00 

Total 11,000.00 

2. Issued/Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: 

39,57,170 Equity Shares @ Rs. 1/- each fully paid up 3,957.17 

Total 3,957.17 
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8. SHARES 

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES 

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the period under review. 
 

b. SWEAT EQUITY 

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Share during the period under review. 
 

c. BONUS SHARES 

No Bonus Shares were issued during the period under review. 
 

d. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees. 

 

9. MATERIAL CHANGES AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATES AS AT MARCH 31, 2023 

There have been no material changes and commitments between the end of F.Y. 2022-23 

and the date of this report, affecting the financial position of the Bank, except the impact 

of COVID-19 pandemic on the business of the Company. 

 

10. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONAL  

As per the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee Ms. Nupur Mehta, 

Director of the Company, retires from office by rotation and being eligible offers herself for 

re-appointment pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of 

Association of the Company. 
 

None of the Directors of the Company is disqualified for being appointed as a Director, as 

specified in Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

All Independent Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of 

Independence as laid by provision of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

11. BOARD EVALUATION  

The Board Evaluation was carried out on the basis of Various Factors as Composition of 

Board and its Committees, its functioning, performance of Specific duties and obligations. 

The performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board of 

Directors (excluding the director being evaluated). The performance of Directors was 

carried out at the meeting. The Board of Directors expressed their satisfaction with the 

evaluation. 

 

12. BOARD MEETINGS: 

The Board of Directors met four times during the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2023. 
 

The meetings were held dated 30.05.2022, 09.08.2022, 31.10.2022 &13.02.2023. 
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13. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 

‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and “General Meetings’ respectively, have been duly 

followed by the Company. 

 

14. CAPITAL/FINANCE: 

During the year, the Company has not allotted any Equity Shares under rights/ 

preferential/ private placement basis.  

 

15. CONSTITUTION OF VARIOUS COMMITTEES AS PER COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

(a) AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit committee comprises of following members: 
 

i. Mr. Jesal Mehta   - Independent Director 

ii. Mr. Kunal Kampani  - Independent Director 

iii. Ms. Nupur Mehta and  - Director 

iv. Ms. Nikita Somani  - Company Secretary.  
 

The terms of reference, inter alia, includes, recommendation for appointment, 

remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company, reviewing and 

monitoring the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process, 

examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon, approval or 

any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties, 

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments, valuation of undertakings or assets 

of the company, wherever it is necessary, evaluation of internal financial controls and 

risk management systems and monitoring the end use of funds raised through public 

offers and related matters. 

 

(b) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Nomination & Remuneration committee comprises of: 
 

i. Mr. Jesal Mehta  - Independent Director 

ii. Mr. Kunal Kampani  - Independent Director 

iii. Ms. Nupur Mehta and - Director 

iv. Ms. Nikita Somani  - Company Secretary.  
 

The terms of reference, inter alia, includes formulating criteria for determining 

qualification, positive attributes and independence of directors, carrying out evaluation 

of Independent Directors and the Board, recommending to Board policy relating to 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and other employees, 

carrying out other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and to 

perform such other functions which is necessary or appropriate for the performance of 

duties. 
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The abridged policy framed by Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as follows- 

 

The company considers its human resources as its invaluable asset and harmonizes 

the aspirations of the same which are consistent with the goals of the company. The 

level and composition of Directors, KMP and Senior Management will be of the nature 

required to run the company smoothly and adequate to improve productivity and 

attract, retain and motivate them. The committee shall determine and recommend their 

appointment, term of service, qualifications and cessation as per statutory requirement 

and ethical standards of probity, rectitude, qualification, competence and experience 

of concerned person further subject to Board’s approval. 

 

The relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks. The remuneration involves a balance between fixed and 

incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance to achieve the Company’s 

target. Members will elect the Chairman of the Committee. A member is not qualified 

to be present when his remuneration or performance is discussed or evaluated 

respectively. Matters shall be decided by majority of votes of Members present and 

voting and such decision shall for all purposes be deemed decision of the Committee. 

In case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote. 

 

Non-Executive Directors may be remunerated in the form of sitting fees for attending 

the Board Meeting as fixed by the Board occasionally. While deciding remuneration of 

Managing Director and Executive Directors the committee considers pay and 

comprehensive factors of industry and concerned person so as to remunerate them 

fairly and reasonably along with some perquisites, allowances and the likes as per the 

rules of the company, subject to statutory requirements. 

 

The remuneration of the other employees is fixed occasionally as per the guiding 

principle outlined above and considering industry standard and cost of hiring. In 

addition to basic salary, they are also provided other benefits as per scheme of the 

company and statutory requirements where applicable. 

 

(c)  STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Stakeholder Relationship committee comprises of: 

 

i. Mr. Jesal Mehta   - Independent Director 

ii. Mr. Kunal Kampani   - Independent Director 

iii. Ms. Nupur Mehta and  - Director 
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The Board has delegated the power of transfer of securities and to look into the matters 

of redressing of the stakeholders/investors complaints to Ms. Nikita Somani, 

Compliance Officer of the Company in consultation with the Registrar to Issue & Share 

Transfer Agent of the Company M/s. MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited. The formalities 

pertaining to transfer of securities is attended at least once in a fortnight and report on 

transfer of securities is placed before the committee/board of directors in meetings, as 

and when applicable. 

 

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

In compliance with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; Director confirms that: - 

  

i) In preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

 

ii) In preparation of Annual Account, your directors have selected relevant accounting 

policies and applied them consistently made judgements and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of financial year 2022-23 and of the profit of the company for the 

period. 

 

iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 

iv) Company has laid down internal financial controls and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

v) Company has laid down systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable law and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

vi) Company has prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

 

17. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has adequate internal control procedures, which are well supplemented by 

surveillance of Internal Auditors. 

 

18. CORPORATRE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility 

initiatives as the said provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 

19. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management’s Discussion & Analysis had been specified in “Annexure D” forming 

part of this Report. 
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20. APPOINTMENT AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

The details of appointment and resignation of KMP’s are specified in point number 25 & 

26. The details of remuneration paid to the KMP’s is forming part of the Balance Sheet 

and specifically mentioned in Note No. 18 of Related Party Transactions. 

 

There are 5 employees as on as March 31st, 2023.  

 

The Factors considered while recommending increase in remuneration are financial 

Performance of the Company, Comparison with peer Companies, industry benchmarking, 

and regulatory guidelines as applicable to Managerial Personnel. The Variables pay is as 

per policy of the Company. 

 

Total Market Capitalization of the Company as per last Closing price is 39.57 lakhs and 

there is no change. 

 

21. PERSONNEL 

Your Directors would like to put on record their appreciation of the sincere and dedicated 

services rendered by the loyal employees of the Company. There were no employees 

drawing remuneration of or in excess of the amount prescribed under the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

22. STATUTORY AUDITORS  

Members of the Company at the 47th AGM held on 30th September 2021, approved 

appointment M/s Ray & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration Number 

313124E) who was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 

consecutive years commencing from the conclusion of 47th AGM of the Company pursuant 

to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013. Report of the Auditors, including reference 

made therein, to the notes forming part of the Statement of Accounts, are self explanatory 

and does not require to be elucidated further. 

 

M/s. Ray & Co., have confirmed that they are within the limits specified under Section 

141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and they are not disqualified to act as Statutory 

Auditors in terms of the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

 

As required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of Listing Regulations, M/s. Ray & Co., have 

confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. 
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The Statutory Auditors Report to the shareholders for the year under review does not 

contain any modified opinion or qualifications and the observations and comments given 

in the report of the Statutory Auditors Notes to accounts are self-explanatory and hence 

do not call for any further explanation or comments under Section 134(f)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, the auditors have not reported any 

fraud under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and therefore, no details are 

required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(c)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

23. COST AUDITORS 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide Notification dated December 31, 2014, made 

amendment in the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, through Companies 

(Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014. As per the Amendment Rules, the 

Company is exempted from the requirement to conduct Cost Audit. 
 

24. SECRETRIAL AUDIT 

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Mr. Pravin Kumar Drolia, 

Practicing Company Secretary have been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditors in Form MR - 3 is enclosed as “Annexure 

A” to this report. The report is self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
  

25. ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2023 is available on the Company’s 

website and it can be accessed through the given link- 

http://kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com/uploads/annual_reports/1688122845KIL_Ann

ualReturn_2022-23.pdf 
 

26. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Joint Ventures but has three Associate 

Companies namely, Faith Suppliers Pvt. Ltd., Kinetic Vanijya Pvt. Ltd., N Marshall Hitech 

Engineers Pvt. Ltd. The details of the same is more specifically specified in Form AOC-1 

annexed with the Boards Report as “Annexure B”. 
 

27. PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company had entered into below mentioned Related Party Transactions during the 

financial year under review. The details of the same is more specifically specified in Form 

AOC-2 annexed with the Boards Report as “Annexure C”. 
 

Managerial Remuneration Paid during 2022-23: -  (Figures in Thousands) 

Sl. No. Name of KMP Designation Remuneration Paid 

1. Dipak Mehta * Ex- Managing Director 100 

2. Zubin Dipak Mehta ** Managing Director 3,500 

3. Munjal Mehta Chief Financial Officer 180 

4. Nikita Somani *** Company Secretary 600 
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* Dipak Mehta, Ex-Managing Director, resigned dated 30.05.2022. 

** Zubin Dipak Mehta Managing Director, appointed dated 01.06.2022. 

*** Nikita Somani, Company Secretary, resigned dated 08.05.2023 & Vishal Shah, Company Secretary 

was appointed by the Board of Directors in its Board meeting dated 07.08.2023. 
 

28. DIRECTORS / KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL / AND THEIR APPOINTMENT / RE-

APPOINTMENT / RESIGNATION 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company is properly constituted and there were following 

Directors or Key Managerial Personal as on 31.03.2023: 
 

DATE NAME DESIGNATION 

31-12-2021 MUNJAL MEHTA Chief Financial Officer 

01-06-2022 ZUBIN DIPAK MEHTA # Managing Director 

08-11-2018 JESAL MEHTA Independent Director 

10-12-2018 KUNAL KAMPANI Independent Director 

12-02-2020 NUPUR MEHTA Director 

01-08-2018 NIKITA SOMANI ## Company Secretary 
  

# Mr. Zupin Dipak Mehta was appointed as Managing Director in the Board Meeting dated 
30.05.2022 w.e.f. 01.06.2022 subject to ratification by shareholders in 48th Annual General Meeting 
(AGM). His conditional appointment was ratified by the shareholders in the said AGM without being 
liable to retire by rotation for the term of 5 years.  
 

Mr. Dipak Mehta (Ex- Managing Director) resigned from the Board w.e.f. 31.05.2022 in the Board 
Meeting dated 30.05.2022. 
  

## Ms. Nikita Somani (Ex- Company Secretary) has resigned from the place of office w.e.f. 
08.05.2023. 

 

29. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

In terms of the requirement of the Act, the Company has developed and implemented the 

Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee of the Board reviews the same 

periodically. 
 

30. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR) 

The Business Responsibility Report as per regulation 34(2) of SEBI Listing Regulations is 

not applicable to the Company as the Company does not fall under top 500 listed 

companies on the basis of market capitalisation. 
 

31. DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

Pursuant to regulation 43A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, top 500 listed companies based on market capitalisation are required 

to formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy. Accordingly, your Company is not required to 

formulate the Dividend Distribution Policy. 
 

32. DEPOSITS 

Your Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
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33. LISTING AGREEMENT 

In compliance with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/6/2015 dated October 13, 2015, 

the Company has executed a Uniform Listing Agreement with The Metropolitan Stock 

Exchange of India Limited (MCX-SX), The Calcutta Stock Exchange, where Equity Shares 

of the Company are listed. Company has paid annual listing fees to both the Stock 

Exchanges. 

 

34. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO:  

The Company being a Non - Banking Financial Company, particulars required to be 

furnished by the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the report of Board of Directors) 

Rules, 1988 regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption is not applicable. 

 

Foreign exchange earning & expenditure – NIL 

 

35. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

In compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company 

has adopted a ‘Code of Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by 

insiders’ and ‘Code of Fair Disclosure’ of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information to 

ensure prohibition of Insider Trading in the Organization.  

 

The ‘Trading Window’ is closed when the Compliance Officer determines that a designated 

person or class of designated persons can reasonably be expected to have possession of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 

  

36. VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report their 

genuine concerns and provide adequate safeguard against their victimization as provided 

in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under. It has been posted 

to Company’s website www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com    

 

37. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your company is committed to providing a safe and secure working environment to its 

women employees and has in place the required Internal Committee as envisaged in the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013. 

 

38. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

OR TRIBUNALS 

No material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
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39. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As per Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2021, the 

requirement of attaching Form MGT-9 has been withdrawn vide notification no. G.S.R. 

159(E). dated 05/03/2021 

 

40. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS  

Detail of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provision of Section 186 

of the companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. However, 

the company is exempt u/s 186(11)(b) from the compliances of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

41. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES  

82.17% of the company’s paid up Equity Share Capital in dematerialized form as on 31st 

March 2023 and balance 17.83% is in physical form.  The Company’s Share Transfer 

Agents is “MCS Share Transfer Agent limited”, having its registered office at 383, Lake 

Gardens, 1st Floor, Kolkata-700045 

 

42. GENERAL 

The other disclosures, not commented upon in this report pursuant to Section 134 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rules, are not applicable to the Company for the financial 

year under review. 

 

43. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors would like to express their grateful appreciation and co-operation received 

from the Financial Institution, Banks, Government Authorities and Shareholders during 

the year under review. Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of 

appreciation to all the employees for their commendable teamwork, exemplary 

professionalism and enthusiastic contribution during the year. 

 

Registered Office:    For and on behalf of the Board  

7, Camac Street, Azimganj House,  Kabirdas Investments Limited 

5th Floor, Unit No. 3B, 

Kolkata – 700017 

 

 

Date: 23/05/2023    Zubin Dipak Mehta  Jesal Mehta 

Place: Kolkata     Managing Director  Director 

       DIN: 06558255  DIN: 05247092 
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ANNEXURES TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
 

Sl. No. ANNEXURE CONTENT 

1. Annexure A 

FORM NO MR-3  

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 

2023  

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration to Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

2. Annexure B 

Form AOC- 1 

Statement containing salient features of the 

financial statement of subsidiaries or associate 

companies or Joint ventures 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 

129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2O14) 

3. Annexure C 

FORM NO. AOC.2 

Form for disclosure of particulars of 

contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub-

section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 

2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 

under third proviso thereto, 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 

of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 

4. Annexure D MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 
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“Annexure A” 

CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA  

(Company Secretary in whole time practice) 

13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata - 700031 

Mobile: 09831196869; Email: droliapravin12@gmail.com 

 

FORM NO MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration to Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Kabirdas Investments Limited, 

Azimganj House, Unit no 3B, 

5th floor, 7, Camac Street, 

Kolkata-700017. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 

and the adherence to good corporate practices by KABIRDAS INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

(hereinafter called “the Company” having CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598). Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 

Based on my verification of the  books, papers, minute books, forms, returns filed and 

other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives  during the conduct of 

secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 

period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 complied with the statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also the Company has proper Board processes and 

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 

made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company digitally for the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2023 according to the provisions of: 
 

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

iii) SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations 2018, 
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iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings- (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
 

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)- as applicable to the Company during the period 

under review: - 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as amended till date; 
 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 as amended till date 
 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the Company during the above 

audit period.) 
 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Shares based employee benefit and sweat 

equity) Regulations 2021-(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 
 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2021 as amended - (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 

as amended -(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Non-Convertible 

Securities Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the 

Audit Period) 
 

vi) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and various directions issued by Reserve Bank of India, 

so far as applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies and other acts and regulations 

which may be applicable to the Company as per ‘Annexure A’ 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

i) Secretarial Standards (SS1 and SS2) as applicable to the Company issued by The 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India regarding holding of Board meeting and 

Member’s meeting 
 

ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange. 
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 

Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Women Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place as 

applicable during the period under review were carried with complying with the 

provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are 

captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and process in the Company 

commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 

compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has not made any: 

(i) Public/Right/Preferential issue of Shares/Debentures/Sweat Equity. 

(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities. 

(iii) Major decisions taken by the Members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

(iv) Merger/Amalgamation/Reconstruction etc. 

(v) Foreign technical collaborations. 

 For, Prvain Kumr Drolia 

(Company Secretary in whole time practice) 

Place; Kolkata 

Date: 23/05/2023 

 

 Pravin Kumar Drolia 

Proprietor 

FCS: 2366, CP 1362 

Peer view registration: 1928/2022 

UDIN:F002366E000351066 
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‘Annexure A’ 

 

(i) The payment of gratuity Act 1972 

(ii) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 

(iii) Indian Contract Act, 187  

(iv) Indian Stamp Act, 1999 

(v) Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

(vi) Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 

(vii) The Employee state Insurance Act  

 

Note: 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘Annexure B’ 

and forms an integral part of this report. 

UDIN: F002366E000351066 

 

CS PRVAIN KUMAR DROLIA  

(Company Secretary in whole time practice) 

13, Selimpur Road, Block: D, Kolkata - 700031 

Mobile: 09831196869; Email: droliapravin12@gmail.com 

 

‘Annexure B’ 

To, 

The Members, 

Kabirdas Investments Limited, 

Azimganj House, Unit no 3B, 

5th floor, 7, Camac Street, 

Kolkata-700017. 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 

based on my audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 

reasonable basis of my opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company. 
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4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and happenings of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was 

limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 For, Prvain Kumr Drolia 

(Company Secretary in whole time practice) 

Place; Kolkata 

Date: 23/05/2023 

 

 Pravin Kumar Drolia 

Proprietor 

FCS: 2366, CP 1362 

Peer view registration: 1928/2022 

UDIN:F002366E000351066 
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“Annexure B” 

Form AOC- 1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2O14) 

 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or 

associate companies or Joint ventures 

 

Part A - Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 

(Figures in Thousands) 

1. S. No. 

 

2. Name of the subsidiary 

3. The date since when subsidiary was acquired 

4. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company's reporting period. 

5. Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 

date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 

subsidiaries. 

6. Share capital 

7. Reserves and surplus 

8. Total assets 

9. Total Liabilities 1O. Investments 

11. Turnover 

12. Profit before taxation 

13. Provision for taxation 

14. Profit after taxation 

15. Proposed Dividend 

16. Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the 

end of the statement: 

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence 

operations 

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or 

sold during the year. 

 

  

NA 

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com


 Kabirdas Investments Limited       Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street 

CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598    Unit No-3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700017 
 Ph. No.: 033-22825513 

 Email: kilgroup2010@gmail.com 

www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com  

KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Director’s Report/Annexure 32 | Page 

 

 

 

Part B Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2O13 related to 

Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

(Figures in Thousands except No. of shares) 

Name of Associates or Joint Ventures 

FAITH 

SUPPLIERS 

Pvt. Ltd. 

KINETIC 

VANIJYA 

Pvt. Ltd. 

N Marshall 

Hitech 

Engineers 

Pvt. Ltd. 

Nature of the Company Associate Associate Associate 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2023 

2. Year on which the Associate or 

Joint Venture was associated or 

acquired 

2010-11 2010-11 2012-13 

3. Shares of Associate or Joint 

Ventures held by the company on 

the year end 

   

3.1   No. of Shares 4,90,000 4,90,000 1,06,200 

3.2   Amount of Investment in Associates 

or Joint Venture 
5,000.00 5,000.00 4,25.86 

3.3   Extent of Holding (in percentage) 35.21% 35.21% 33.96% 

4. Description of how there is 

significant influence 

By Virtue of 

Shareholding 

By Virtue of 

Shareholding 

By Virtue of 

Shareholding 

5. Reason why the associate/Joint 

venture ls not consolidated. 
NA NA NA 

6. Net worth attributable to 

shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet 

4,862.15 4,869.71 1,904.60 

7. Profit or Loss for the year (26.09) (25.43) 202.58 

i. Considered in Consolidation (9.19) (8.95) 0 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 0 0 68.80 

 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - NIL 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the 

year - NIL 

 

Registered Office:    For and on behalf of the Board  

7, Camac Street, Azimganj House,  Kabirdas Investments Limited 

5th Floor, Unit No. 3B, 

Kolkata – 700017 

 

Date: 23/05/2023    Zubin Dipak Mehta  Jesal Mehta 

Place: Kolkata     Managing Director  Director 

       DIN: 06558255  DIN: 05247092 
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“Annexure C” 

 

FORM NO. AOC.2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s  length transactions under third 

proviso thereto- 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

 

(a)   Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

 

(b)   Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

(c)    Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 

(d)   Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any 

(e)   Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements 
or transactions 

(f)    Date of approval by the Board 

(g)   Amount paid as advances, if any: 

(h)   Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

 

(a)   Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

Specified in 
Note No. 18 of 
The Financial 
Statements 

(b)   Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

(c)    Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 

(d)   Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any: 

(e)   Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 

(f)    Amount paid as advances, if any: 

 

 
Registered Office:    For and on behalf of the Board  

7, Camac Street, Azimganj House,  Kabirdas Investments Limited 

5th Floor, Unit No. 3B, 

Kolkata – 700017 

 

 

Date: 23/05/2023    Zubin Dipak Mehta  Jesal Mehta 

Place: Kolkata     Managing Director  Director 

       DIN: 06558255  DIN: 05247092 

NIL 
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“Annexure D” 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis 
(Forming part of this report) 

 

1. Economic Outlook i.e., Global Economy and Indian Economy 
 

In general, global economic shocks in the past were severe but spaced out in time. This 

changed in the third decade of this millennium. At least three shocks have hit the global 

economy since 2020. It all started with the pandemic-induced contraction of the global 

output, followed by the Russian-Ukraine conflict leading to a worldwide surge in inflation. 

Then, the central banks across economies led by the Federal Reserve responded with 

synchronised policy rate hikes to curb inflation. The rate hike by the US Fed drove capital 

into the US markets causing the US Dollar to appreciate against most currencies. This 

led to the widening of the Current Account Deficits (CAD) and increased inflationary 

pressures in net importing economies. The rate hike and persistent inflation also led to a 

lowering of the global growth forecasts for 2022 and 2023 by the IMF in its October 2022 

update of the World Economic Outlook. The frailties of the Chinese economy further 

contributed to weakening the growth forecasts. Slowing global growth apart from 

monetary tightening may also lead to a financial contagion emanating from the advanced 

economies where the debt of the non-financial sector has risen the most since the global 

financial crisis. With inflation persisting in the advanced economies and the central banks 

hinting at further rate hikes, downside risks to the global economic outlook appear 

elevated. 
 

The Indian economy, however, appears to have moved on after its encounter with the 

pandemic, staging a full recovery in FY22 ahead of many nations and positioning itself to 

ascend to the pre-pandemic growth path in FY23. Yet in the current year, India has also 

faced the challenge of reining in inflation that the European strife accentuated. Measures 

taken by the government and RBI, along with the easing of global commodity prices, have 

finally managed to bring retail inflation below the RBI upper tolerance target in November 

2022. However, the challenge of the depreciating rupee, although better performing than 

most other currencies, persists with the likelihood of further increases in policy rates by 

the US Fed. The widening of the CAD may also continue as global commodity prices 

remain elevated and the growth momentum of the Indian economy remains strong. The 

loss of export stimulus is further possible as the slowing world growth and trade shrinks 

the global market size in the second half of the current year. 
 

Despite these, agencies worldwide continue to project India as the fastest-growing major 

economy at 6.5-7.0 per cent in FY23. These optimistic growth forecasts stem in part from 

the resilience of the Indian economy seen in the rebound of private consumption 

seamlessly replacing the export stimuli as the leading driver of growth. The uptick in 

private consumption has also given a boost to production activity resulting in an increase 

in capacity utilisation across sectors.  
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The rebound in consumption was engineered by the near-universal vaccination coverage 

overseen by the government that brought people back to the streets to spend on contact-

based services, such as restaurants, hotels, shopping malls, and cinemas, among others. 

The world’s second-largest vaccination drive involving more than 2 billion doses also 

served to lift consumer sentiments that may prolong the rebound in consumption. 

Vaccinations have facilitated the return of migrant workers to cities to work in 

construction sites as the rebound in consumption spilled over into the housing market. 

This is evident in the housing market witnessing a significant decline in inventory 

overhang to 33 months in Q3 of FY23 from 42 months last year. 

 

The Capital Expenditure (Capex) of the central government, which increased by 63.4 per 

cent in the first eight months of FY23, was another growth driver of the Indian economy 

in the current year, crowding in the private Capex since the January-March quarter of 

2022. On current trend, it appears that the full year’s capital expenditure budget will be 

met. A sustained increase in private Capex is also imminent with the strengthening of the 

balance sheets of the Corporates and the consequent increase in credit financing it has 

been able to generate. A much-improved financial health of well-capitalised public sector 

banks has positioned them better to increase the credit supply. Consequently, the credit 

growth to the Micro, Small, and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector has been remarkably 

high, over 30.6 per cent, on average during Jan-Nov 2022, supported by the extended 

Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) of the Union government. The 

increase in the overall bank credit has also been influenced by the shift in borrower’s 

funding choices from volatile bond markets, where yields have increased, and external 

commercial borrowings, where interest and hedging costs have increased, towards banks. 

If inflation declines in FY24 and if real cost of credit does not rise, then credit growth is 

likely to be brisk in FY24. 

 

India’s economic growth in FY23 has been principally led by private consumption and 

capital formation. It has helped generate employment as seen in the declining urban 

unemployment rate and in the faster net registration in Employee Provident Fund. Still, 

private capex soon needs to take up the leadership role to put job creation on a fast track. 

Recovery of MSMEs is proceeding apace, as is evident in the amounts of Goods and 

Services Tax (GST) they pay, while the Emergency Credit Linked Guarantee Scheme 

(ECGLS) is easing their debt servicing concerns. The Mahatma Gandhi National Rural 

Employment Guarantee Scheme (MGNREGS) has been directly providing jobs in rural 

areas and indirectly creating opportunities for rural households to diversify their sources 

of income generation. Schemes like PM-Kisan and PM Garib Kalyan Yojana have helped 

in ensuring food security in the country, and their impact was also endorsed by the United 

Nations Development Programme (UNDP)1. The results of the National Family Health 

Survey (NFHS) also show improvement in rural welfare indicators from FY16 to FY20, 

covering aspects like gender, fertility rate, household amenities, and women 

empowerment. 
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Global growth has been projected to decline in 2023 and is expected to remain generally 

subdued in the following years as well. The slowing demand will likely push down global 

commodity prices and improve India’s CAD in FY24. However, a downside risk to the 

Current Account Balance stems from a swift recovery driven mainly by domestic demand 

and, to a lesser extent, by exports. The CAD needs to be closely monitored as the growth 

momentum of the current year spills over into the next. Growth is expected to be brisk in 

FY24 as a vigorous credit disbursal, and capital investment cycle is expected to unfold in 

India with the strengthening of the balance sheets of the corporate and banking sectors. 

Further support to economic growth will come from the expansion of public digital 

platforms and path-breaking measures such as PM GatiShakti, the National Logistics 

Policy, and the Production-Linked Incentive schemes to boost manufacturing output. 

 

figure I.1: Sharp rise in commodity prices due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict; prices 

yet to reach pre-conflict levels 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Inflation stays high, driven by high food and energy prices: 
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table I.1: Global economic challenges led to a downward revision in growth forecast 

across countries 

 
 

 Growth projections (%) change from Weo 

Update (July 2022) (%) 

 2022 2023 2022 2023 

World 3.2 2.7 0 –0.2 

advanced economies 2.4 1.1 –0.1 –0.3 

United States 1.6 1 –0.7 0 

euro area 3.1 0.5 0.5 –0.7 

UK 3.6 0.3 0.4 –0.2 

Japan 1.7 1.6 0 –0.1 

emerging market 
economies 

3.7 3.7 0.1 –0.2 

China 3.2 4.4 –0.1 –0.2 

India* 6.8 6.1 –0.6 0 

Source: IMF 

Note: *Projection for India is for its fiscal year (Apr-Mar), while for the other economies, it is from Jan-

Dec. 

 

FY23 thus opened with a firm belief that the pandemic was rapidly on the wane and 
that India was poised to grow at a fast pace and quickly ascend to the pre-pandemic 
growth path. 
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2. Industry Structure and Developments 
 

NBFCs have become important constituents of the financial sector and have been 

recording higher credit growth than scheduled commercial banks (SCBs) over the past 

few years. NBFCs are continuously leveraging their superior understanding of regional 

dynamics, well-developed collection system and personalised services to expedite financial 

inclusion in India. Lower transaction costs, quick decision making, customer orientation 

and prompt provision of services have typically differentiated NBFCs from banks. 

Considering the reach and expanse of NBFCs, these are well suited for bridging the 

financing gap. Systemically important NBFCs have demonstrated agility, innovation and 

frugality to provide formal financial services to millions of Indians. Over the last decade, 

NBFCs have witnessed phenomenal growth. From being around 12% of the balance sheet 

size of banks in 2010, these are now more than a quarter of the size of banks. NBFCs are 

the largest net borrowers of funds from the financial system with gross payables of ` 9.37 

lakh crore as of 30 September 2020. The disruption in business was most severe for 

NBFCs and HFCs who registered a negative growth of 25% on a year-on-year basis for the 

period ended December 2020 versus a growth of 47% for the period ended December 

2019. Your Company operates in only one segment that is investment Segment and its 

main business is acquisition / sale of shares, stock, bonds, etc.  

 

3. Opportunities  
 

The success of any organization depends on its ability to identify strengths and 

opportunism and leverage them while mitigating the risk that arise while conducting the 

business. Your Company has taken all these factors into account in drawing up its plan 

for the future without losing its sight for its core market segments. The NBFC sector has 

been providing credit to customers in the underserved and unbanked areas. NBFC is 

integral to the Indian Financial system, augmenting competition and diversification in the 

financial sector and complementing the banking system. Channelings the savings in 

capital formation, necessary for India’s economic growth and development. There is vast 

opportunities for NBFC sector to grow. However, your Company operates in only the 

investment Segment and. its main business is acquisition of shares, stock, bonds, etc. 

Although Investment Segment is also effected by COVID-19 pandemic as developed in the 

last quarter of last Financial year, we hope that there will be opportunities for growth till 

the situations caused by COVID19 is stabilized. India Ratings (Ind-Ra) has maintained 

stable outlook on retail non-banking finance company (NBFC) for 2021-22. 

  

4. Threat  
 

The key threats for our businesses include volatility of stock market, Liquidity crises 

created by some of the big corporate players in NBFC sector like IL& FS and DHFL and 

currency volatility. Besides these, current COVID-19 crisis is also a threats to the 

business to the NBFC sector. Although, COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in short-term 

disruptions in the industry in almost all sectors, we hope, long-term drivers, remain good 

and expect continued expansion of the business activity.  
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5. Risk & Concern  
 

Risks and concerns are inherent in any business. NBFCs have been already facing 

liquidity crisis following the bankruptcy of IL&FS and DHFL & Reliance capital during the 

year 2018-19. The continuing liquidity crunch faced by non-banking financial companies 

is likely to result in increasing bad loans risks for banks both from these shadow banks 

as well as from companies relying on such lenders for funding. The spillover of stress 

among NBFCs to borrowers, and ultimately to banks, will hinder improvements in banks' 

asset quality, profitability and capital, which is credit negative.  

 

However, your Company does not have direct impact of these defaults in NBFC sector as 

it operates in only Investment segment. But indirectly it is effected by down turn negative 

segment in stock market. The other risks that is related to our Company are RBI policies, 

industry performance and the general economic outlook of the country.  

 

6. Internal Control System  
 

The Company has well defined and adequate internal control system to safeguard all 

assets and ensure operational excellence. These systems are being regularly reviewed and 

wherever necessary are modified or redesigned to ensure better efficiency and 

effectiveness. The systems are subjected to supervision by the Board of Directors and the 

Audit Committee. Company complies with all applicable statutes, policies, procedures, 

listing requirements and management guidelines.  

 

7. Human Resource / Industrial Relations 
  

Human resource is considered as key to the future growth strategy of the Company and 

looks upon to focus its efforts to further align human resource policies and processes to 

meet its business needs. The Company aims to develop the potential of every individual 

associated with the Company as a part of its business goal. Respecting the experienced 

and mentoring the young talent has been the bedrock for the Company’s growth. Human 

resources are the principal drivers of change. They push the levers that take futuristic 

businesses to the next level of excellence and achievement.  

 

8. Cautionary Statement: 
  

The report may contain “forward looking statement” that describes our objectives, plan or 

goals. All these forward looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties 

including but not limited to Government action, economic development, global and 

domestic demand-supply conditions, finished goods prices, raw materials etc that could 

cause the actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant 

forward looking statements The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of the 

forward looking statements herein which may undergo changes in future on the basis of 

subsequent developments, information or events 
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The second advance estimates of national income for FY2022 released by the Central 

Statistics Office on 28 February 2022 expect GDP growth in FY2022 to be 8.9%. Sectoral 

growth estimates show that all three sectors — agriculture, manufacturing, and services 

— grew well. In absolute terms, the economic output of all the three sectors crossed the 

pre-pandemic levels of FY2020. RBI in its monetary policy report dated 8 April 2022 

projected a real GDP growth of 7.2% for the financial year 2022-23 (FY2023). 

 

Although private consumption expenditure barely crossed the pre-pandemic levels, 

growth of government consumption expenditure and gross fixed capital formation made 

up for the muted private consumption expenditure. GST collection is a good indicator to 

assess country’s growth and economic recovery, it increased by over 30% in FY2022 to ₹ 

14.83 lakh crore, indicating revival and growth momentum.  

 

The Government of India announced a growth oriented and expansionary budget for the 

FY2023 with a strong push on investments to lift economic growth. The compounded 

annual growth rate for capital expenditure of FY2023 over FY2020 is projected at 28% 

while revenue expenditure is contained at 12%. The budget’s expectation is that such 

capex-led growth would take India on a growth path even at the cost of a fiscal deficit of 

6.4% in FY2023, coming on top of 6.8% in FY2022. 

 

Unfortunately, the conflict in Ukraine has led to chaos in global commodity markets. 

Crude prices are oscillating between USD100 to USD120 posing a threat to India’s 

economic recovery. How increased commodity prices will unfold is yet to be seen. What is 

sure, however, is that there will be a considerable impact on inflation which was already 

a cause of concern.  

 

Inflation has emerged as a global challenge owing to the surge in energy prices, non-food 

commodities, input prices disruptions of global supply chains and rising freight costs. In 

India, retail inflation measured by the Consumer Price Index (CPI) edged up to 6.95% in 

March 2022 from 5.66% in December 2021. The food group registered a significant decline 

in prices primarily on account of vegetables, meat and fish, edible oils, and fruits. Fuel 

inflation eased in December 2021 but remained in double digit and remains a serious 

cause of worry.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Members of  

KABIRDAS INVESTMENTS LIMITED 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 
 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kabirdas 

Investments Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 

2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 

and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of 

the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 

as at 31 March 2023, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows 

and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 
 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matter 
 

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. 

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. 
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5. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon 

 

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 

include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is 

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 

performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements 

 

7. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the 

Company’s Board of Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 

flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 

under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 

controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 

realistic alternative but to do so. 
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9. Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 

reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

 

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern; 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; 

 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information/financial 

statements of the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. {We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial 

statements of the Company and such branches included in the financial statements, of 

which we are the independent auditors. 

 

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the 

Annexure A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

 

15. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent 

applicable, that: 

 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the 

accompanying standalone financial statements; 

 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 

c) the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

books of account; 

 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS 

specified under section 133 of the Act; 

 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act; 
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f) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and 

limits laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

 

g) we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 

of the Company as on 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 23 May 

2023 as per Annexure B expressed unmodified opinion; and 

 

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 

with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 

i. the Company, does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial 

position as at 31 March 2023; 

 

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023; and 

 

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

 

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, 

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 

Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 

management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material 

misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 

2023. 
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16. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of test 

checks carried out by us during the course of the audit of the Company, our reports 

on the matters specified in Para 3A and 3C of the Master Direction - Non-Banking 

Financial Companies Auditors' Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 are as follows: 
 

(i) The Company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution and has 

obtained a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India; 
 

(ii) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company is entitled to 

continue to hold the Certificate of Registration in terms of its asset/income pattern as on 

31st March 2023; 
 

(iii) The Company is meeting the net-owned fund requirement as laid down in the Master 

Directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India; 
 

(iv) The Board of Directors of the Company has passed a resolution for not accepting any 

public deposit; 
 

(v) The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the year; 
 

(vi) The Company has complied with the prudential norms relating to income recognition, 

income on investments, accounting for investments, Indian accounting standards, asset 

classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of 

Non-Banking Financial Company – Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking 

Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016; 
 

(vii) Based on the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been 

classified as a NBFC Micro Finance Institution (MFI) as defined in the Non-Banking 

Financial Company Non-Systemically Important Non-Deposit Taking Company (Reserve 

Bank) Directions, 2016. 
 

For RAY & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 313124E 

 

 

Subrata Roy 

Partner 

M. No. 051205 

UDIN: 23051205BGYGBJ9814 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 23rd May,2023 

Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report 



 

 

 
 

KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Standalone/Auditors Report  48 | Page 

 

 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the 

members of KABIRDAS INVESTMENTS LIMITED, on the financial statements for the 

year ended 31st March, 2023 

 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair 

view on the financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the 

information and explanations given to us and the books of account and other records 

examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that: 

 

(i) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment or intangible assets 

or right of use assets or investment property and accordingly, reporting under clause 

3(i) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the 

Order’) is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(ii) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 

3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(iii) (a) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to 

give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

 

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and terms and 

conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and 

guarantees provided are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the Company’s interest.  

 

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, 

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been 

stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.  

 

(d) There is no amount which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans or 

advances in the nature of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs or other 

parties. 

 

(e) The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company and its principal business is to 

give loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 
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(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, as per details 

below: 

Particulars All Parties 

(Rs. In 

lakhs) 

Promoters 

(Rs. In 

lakhs) 

Related 

Parties 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

Aggregate of loans/advances in 

nature of loan 

- Repayable on demand (A) 

- Agreement does not specify any terms 

or period of repayment (B) 

 

 

60.46 

- 

 

 

- 

- 

 

 

34.44 

- 

Total (A+B) 60.46 - 34.44 

Percentage of loans/advances in 

nature of loan to the total loans 

100 - 56.97 

 

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect 

of loans, investments, guarantees and security, as applicable. 

 

 (v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been 

considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 

Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting 

under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business 

activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and 

services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 

service tax, , duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other 

material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no 

undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for 

a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory 

dues referred to in sub clause (a) above that have not been deposited with the 

appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of 

accounts. 
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(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not 

have any loans or other borrowings from any lender. Accordingly, reporting under 

clause 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including 

confirmations received from banks and representation received from the 

management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 

report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or other lender. 

 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and 

there has been no utilisation during the current year of the term loans obtained 

by the Company during any previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause 

3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year or in any 

previous year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix) (d) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 

examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken 

any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its 

associates.  

 

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its associate 

companies. 

 

(x) (a) The Company did not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.  Accordingly, reporting 

under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially 

or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting 

under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or 

reported during the period covered by our audit. 

 

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government 

for the period covered by our audit.  
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the 

representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-

blower complaints received by the Company during the year. 

 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable 

to it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all 

transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance 

with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable. Further, the details of such 

related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 

statements as required Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party 

Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act. 

 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the Act 

which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

 

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till 

date for the period under audit. 

 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non –

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them and accordingly, 

provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xv) (a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the company. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 

conducted Non-Banking Financial activities during the year under a valid Certificate 

of Registration (CoR) from the RBI as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core 

Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. 

Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the 

management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC. 
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment 

of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial 

statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management, we 

are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 

that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 

and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We 

further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report 

and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as 

and when they fall due. 

 

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fulfill 

the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under 

clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in 

respect of said clause under this report. 

 

For RAY & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 313124E  

Subrata Roy 

Partner 

M. No. 051205 

UDIN: 23051205BGYGBJ9814 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 23rd May,2023 
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Annexure B to the Auditor’s Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of KABIRDAS INVESTMENTS 

LIMITED (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31st March 2023, we have audited 

the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company of as of 

that date.  
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls over financial 

reporting issued by ICAI. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the its business, including adherence to 

company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained 

and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an 

understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 
 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 

management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition 

of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to 

future periods are subject to the risk that IFCoFR may become inadequate because of 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 

may deteriorate. 
 

Opinion 
 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAI. 
 

For RAY & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 313124E 

  
Subrata Roy 

Partner 

M. No. 051205 

UDIN: 23051205BGYGBJ9814 
 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 23rd May,2023 
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1. COMPANY OVERVIEW

Kabirdas Investments Limited (‘the Company’) is a public limited company incorporated

and domiciled in India and has its registered office at Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street,

Unit No 3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata 700017. The company is engaged in the business of

investments and financing. The company has its primary listings on Metropolitan Stock

Exchange of India Limited and Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company is registered as Non-Systematically Important, Non-Deposit taking Non-

Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 1934. 

In accordance with the notification dated 16th February, 2015, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as 

“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 

amended) with effect from April 1, 2018. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS

Financial Statements are set out as below. These policies have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements 

(i) Compliance with Ind AS 

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 

Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read together with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of 

the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.  

(ii) Historical Cost Convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standard (Ind AS), under the historical cost convention on the accrual 

basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values. 

(iii) Use of Estimates and Judgements 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires 

management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, 

judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported 

amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates 

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com


Kabirdas Investments Limited Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street 

CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598    Unit No-3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700017 
Ph. No.: 033-22825513 

Email: kilgroup2010@gmail.com 
www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com 

   Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

 KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Significant Accounting Policy 60 | Page 

could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those 

estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes 

aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in 

estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes 

are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements. 

(iv) Fair value measurements 

Fair value hierarchy 

Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on 

derecognition of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 

at the measurement date under current market conditions. 

The Company categorises assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of 

three levels depending on the ability to observe inputs employed for such 

measurements. 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or 

liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price including within level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 

derived from prices). 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is 

determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable 

market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If significant 

inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 

included in Level 2. 

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market 

data (unobservable inputs). 

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 

fair value is determined using generally accepted pricing models based on a 

discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant input being the discount 

rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparty. This is the case with listed 

instruments where market is not liquid and for unlisted instruments.  

The management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets (other 

than those measured at fair values) and liabilities recognized in the financial 

statements approximate their fair value as on March 31, 2022 and March 31, 

2021. 

mailto:kilgroup2010@gmail.com


Kabirdas Investments Limited Azimganj House, 7 Camac Street 

CIN: L65993WB1974PLC157598    Unit No-3B, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700017 
Ph. No.: 033-22825513 

Email: kilgroup2010@gmail.com 
www.kabirdasinvestmentslimited.com 

   Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

 KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Significant Accounting Policy 61 | Page 

There has been no change in the valuation methodology for Level 3 inputs during 

the year. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year. 

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, which are subject to 

an insignificant risk of change in value. 

(c) Accounting for Taxes on Income 

Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 

(i) Current Tax 

Current tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current 

accounting period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.  

(ii) Deferred Tax 

Deferred Tax assets and liabilities is measured at the tax rates that are expected to 

apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax 

rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 

the reporting period. 

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding 

amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred tax is also recognized for 

carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will 

be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.  

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting 

period. The Company reduces the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent 

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the 

benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is 

reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 

available.  

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is 

recognized either in other comprehensive income or in equity.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 

off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes 

levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax 

assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
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(d) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

(i) Tangible Assets  

Transition to Ind AS 

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, 

plant and equipment and investment property recognised as of 1 April, 2018 (the 

transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use such carrying value as 

its deemed cost as of the transition date. 

Recognition and Measurement 

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods 

or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at 

historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 

(if any). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 

acquisition of the items. 

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount, only when it is 

probable that future economic benefits associated with the cost incurred will flow to 

the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount 

of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. 

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is provided under Written Down Method 

at rates determined based on the useful life of the respective assets and the residual 

values in accordance with Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 or as reassessed by 

the Company based on the technical evaluation.  

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis 

i.e., from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 

year-end and adjusted if appropriate. 

Disposal of Assets 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no 

future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and 

equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.  
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(e) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue 

is recognised when (or as) the Companies satisfy a performance obligation by 

transferring a promised goods or service to a customer.   

(i) Interest Income 

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate, except in the case of 

non-performing assets where it is recognized, upon realization, as per the 

Prudential Norms/Directions of RBI, as applicable to NBFC's. 

(ii) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

(iii) Income from investment 

Profit / (loss) earned from sale of securities is recognised on trade date basis. The 

cost of securities is computed based on FIFO basis. 

(iv)  All other income are accounted for on accrual basis unless otherwise specified 

(f) Employee Benefits 

(i) Short term Employee benefits are accrued in the year services are rendered by the 

employees. 

(ii) Contribution to defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund etc. is being 

made in accordance with the statute and are recognized as and when incurred. 

Contribution to defined benefit plans consisting of contribution to gratuity are 

determined at close of the year at present value of the amount payable using 

actuarial valuation techniques. Actuarial gain and losses arising from experience 

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in other 

comprehensive income. Other costs recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

(iii) Other long term employee benefits consisting of Leave encashment are determined 

at close of the year at present value of the amount payable using actuarial 

valuation techniques. The changes in the amount payable including actuarial gain 

or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

(g) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity 

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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(i) Financial assets 

Recognition and Initial Measurement: 

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instruments. A financial asset is initially 

measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 

acquisition of the financial asset. 

Classification and Subsequent Measurement: 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four 

categories: 

• Measured at Amortized Cost;

• Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

• Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL);

• Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

(FVTOCI). Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition,

except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing

financial assets.

• Measured at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if

both the following conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows; and 

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash 

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal 

amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.  

• Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the

following conditions are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual

cash flows and selling the financial assets; and  

- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI. 

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus 

transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or 

losses arising on re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income, except 

for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. Interest 

calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit 

and loss in investment income. 
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• Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt

instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or

as FVTOCI, is classified as FVTPL. In addition, the company may elect to designate a

debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at

FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair

value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

• Equity Instruments measured at FVTOCI: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS –

109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are

classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the company may make an

irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in

the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument by instrument

basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. In case the

company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value

changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is

no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.

Derecognition 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual 

rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) in 

associates with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost and with the exposure 

arising from loan commitments and other financial assets. The company recognises a 

loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. 

The measurement of ECL reflects: 

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a 

range of possible outcomes; 

- The time value of money; and 

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort 

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecast of future 

economic conditions. 

The measurement of the ECL allowance is an area that requires the use of complex 

models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit 

behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customer defaulting and the resulting losses). 

Write-off policy 

The Company writes off financial assets, in whole or part, when it has exhausted all 

practical recovery efforts and has conducted there is no reasonable expectation of 

recovery.  
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(ii) Financial Liabilities 

Recognition and Initial Measurement:  

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or 

loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are 

recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Subsequent Measurement: 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial 

liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or 

it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured 

at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in 

statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Interest expense and foreign 

exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss 

on derecognition is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.  

Derecognition  

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged 

or cancelled or expires.  

Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance 

sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there 

is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 

and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, 

insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty. 

(h) Investment in associates 

The Company accounts for its investments in associates at cost less accumulated 

impairment, if any. 

(i) Earnings per Share 

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the 

year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares 

outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the 

profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potential equity shares 

by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the 

weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all 

the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. 
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(j) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 

recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher on an asset’s fair value less 

costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets 

are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows 

which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or group of assets 

(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are 

reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

(k) Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, legal or constructive 

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the 

obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best 

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the 

reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk 

specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 

recognised as interest expense.  

The company makes provision for Standard, Restructured and Non-performing Assets 

as per the  Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company –Non-Systemically 

Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, as amended 

from time to time. The company also makes additional provision, to the extent 

considered necessary, and based on the management's best estimate. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made when there is a possible obligation 

arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 

within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events 

where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or 

a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation 

or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 

provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.  

Contingent Assets are not recognised but are disclosed when an inflow of economic 

benefits is probable 
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(l) Critical estimates and judgements 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised 

in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, and the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are 

continually evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, 

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 

circumstances. Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those 

involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgements 

that have most significant effect on the amount recognised in the Standalone Ind AS 

financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the 

carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include the 

following; 

Estimation of fair value of unlisted investment 

The fair value of financial instrument that are not traded in an active market is 

determined using valuation techniques. The Company use its judgement to select a 

variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions 

existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of key assumptions used and the 

impact of changes to these assumptions. 

Impairment of financial assets using the expected credit loss method 

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of 

default and expected credit loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these 

assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the 

Company’s history, existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the 

end of each reporting period.   

Current Tax 

Current tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current 

accounting period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred Tax 

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not 

that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which 

the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future taxable 

profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the temporary 

differences are related to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the 

availability of the losses to offset against the future taxable profits. Recognition therefore 

involves judgement regarding the future financial performance of the Company. 
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Provisions and Contingencies 

Provisions and contingencies are based on Management’s best estimate of the liabilities 

based on the facts known at the balance sheet date.  

(m) Statement of Cash Flows 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is 

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals 

of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 

associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 

investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. The Company 

considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts 

of cash to be cash equivalents. 
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23B. Additional Disclosures 

(a) During the year, the Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the 

nature of loans which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any 

terms or period of repayment to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related 

parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013,) either severally or jointly with 

any other person. 

(b) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 

of 1988) and the rules made thereunder, the company for the financial year 

2022-23. 

(c) The Company has not taken any borrowings from banks or financial institutions 

on the basis of security of current assets during the financial year ended 31 03 

2023. 

(d) The Company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial 

Institution or other lender. 

(e) The company has any not entered into any transactions with companies which 

are struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 

Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ended on 31 03 2023. 

(f) During the year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds 

(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) 

with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the 

Intermediary shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries the company; 

(g) During the year Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party  (Ultimate  

Beneficiaries) or 
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(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries, 

(h) The Company does not have any transaction relating to earlier years that has 

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 

under the Income tax Act, 1961 and also there are no such previously 

unrecorded income and related assets relating to earlier years which have been 

recorded in the books of account during the year. 

(i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency 

during the financial year 

(j) The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. 

Accordingly, no disclosure is given as required under amendments to Schedule 

III. 

(k) The company has not made any investment in a subsidiary company. 

Accordingly, the company is not required to comply with section 2 clause 87 of 

the Act read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017. 

(l) No Scheme of arrangement has been entered into in terms of Section 230 to 237 

of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(m) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be 

registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
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As per our report of even date  For and on behalf of the Board  

For RAY & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 313124E  

Zubin Dipak Mehta Jesal Mehta
Managing Director  Director 

Subrata Roy (DIN: 06558255)  (DIN: 05247092)
Partner  
M. No. 051205 
UDIN: 23051205BGYGBJ9814 

Place:Kolkata             Munjal Mehta  
Date: 23rd May,2023      Chief Financial Officer 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of  

KABIRDAS INVESTMENT LIMITED 

 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

Opinion  

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s KABIRDAS 

INVESTMENTS LIMITED (‘the Holding Company’) and its associates (the Holding 

Company and its associates together referred to as ‘the Group’), as listed in Paragraph 13 

which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Consolidated 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 

Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 

then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information. 

 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the management on separate 

financial statements and on the other financial information of the associates, the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of 

the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of 

the Group, as at 31 March 2023, and their consolidated loss (including other 

comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

3. Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 

described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit 

evidence obtained by the management in terms of their reports referred to in paragraph 

15 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. 
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4. Key Audit Matter 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the 

consideration of the reports of the management on separate financial statements and on 

the other financial information of the associates, were of most significance in our audit of 

the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our 

report. 

 

    

Information other than financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 

        

5. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 

other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 

include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility 

is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 

is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 

work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

 

 

      Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Standalone Financial Statements.  

 

6. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding 

Company’s Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these 

consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 

financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind 

AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of 

Directors/management of the companies included in the Group are responsible for 
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maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 

the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as 

aforesaid. 

 

7. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of 

the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the 

Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 

either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

 

8. That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 

of the companies included in the Group. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

9. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards 

on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these financial statements. 

 

10. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional 

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 
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b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has 

adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls; 

 

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

 

d.  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the 

Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as 

a going concern;  

 

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

f. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities within the Group, to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial 

statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the 

independent auditors. For the other entities included in the financial statements, which 

have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 

direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain 

solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 

11. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

12. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 

them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Other Matter 

 

13. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss 

(including other comprehensive income) of ₹ 18.14 thousands for the year ended 31 March 

2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three 

associates, viz. M/s Kinetic Vanijya Pvt Ltd; M/s Faith Suppliers Pvt Ltd & M/s N 

Marshall Hitech Engineers Pvt Ltd whose financial statements have not been audited by 

us. In respect of two associates, those financial statements have been audited by other 

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and in respect of 

one associate, the financial information has been furnished to us by the management 

and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the 

amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report in terms 

of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, 

are based solely on the reports of the management. 

 

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other 

legal and regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters 

with respect to our reliance on the work done by and the reports of the management and 

other auditors. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

14. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

(‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the 

Act based on the consideration of the Order reports issued by us and by the respective 

other auditors as mentioned in paragraph 13 above, of companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no 

qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such 

companies. 

 

15. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of 

the reports of the management and other auditors on separate financial statements and 

other financial information of the associates, we  report, to the extent applicable, that: 

 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements; 

 

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books and the reports of the management; 
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c) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements; 

 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS 

specified under section 133 of the Act; 

 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the 

reports of the management of its associate companies covered under the Act, none of the 

directors of the Group companies covered under the Act, are disqualified as on 31 March 

2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

f) As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of 

the reports of the management, referred to in paragraph 13, on separate financial 

statements of the associates, we report that the Holding Company paid remuneration to its 

directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under 

section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that the provisions of 

section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to three associate companies 

covered under the Act, since none of such companies is a public company as defined under 

section 2(71) of the Act. 

 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate report in ‘Annexure A’. We are unable to express opinion on the IFCoFR of the 

three associates since they remain unaudited; and 

 

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion 

and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and 

based on the consideration of the report of the management on separate financial 

statements as also the other financial information of the associates: 

i. there were no pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 which would impact the 

consolidated financial position of the Group; 

ii. the Holding Company and its associates did not have any long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 

2023; 

iii.  there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate companies covered under 

the Act, during the year ended 31 March 2023. 
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iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 

securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group, its associate 

companies or its joint venture companies to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 

other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Group, its associate companies or its joint venture companies (‘the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

have been received by the Group, its associate companies or its joint venture companies 

from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with 

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group , its 

associate companies or its joint venture companies shall, whether directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 

behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security 

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c. Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the 

management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material 

misstatement 

v. The Holding Company and its associate companies have not declared or paid any 

dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023. 

 

For RAY & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 313124E 

 
 

 

 

Subrata Roy 

Partner 

M. No. 051205 

UDIN: 23051205BGYGBK7429 

 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 23rd May,2023 
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Annexure A 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 (“THE ACT”) 

 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Kabirdas 

Investments Limited (“the holding company”) and its associate, (the holding company and 

its associates together referred to as “the group”), as of and for the year ended 31 March 

2023, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of 

the holding company, which is a company incorporated in India, as of that date. 

 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 

2. The respective board of directors of the holding company, which is a company 

incorporated in India, is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the guidance 

note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by ICAI. These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of the company’s business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the 

safeguarding of the company’s assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the act. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company as 

aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to 

be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 

IFCoFR and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and 

maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

  



 

KIL/Annual Report/2022-23/Standalone/Auditors Report  98 | Page 

 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the IFCoFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an 

understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

 

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 

management and directors of the company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements.  

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or 

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

8. In our opinion, the Holding Company which is a company incorporated in India, has, in 

all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and 

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 

March 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting issued by 

ICAI. We are unable to express any opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of IFCoFR 

regarding the three associate companies remaining unaudited. 

 

Other Matter 

 

9. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss 

(including other comprehensive income) of ₹ 18.14 thousands for the year ended 31 March 

2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three 

associates. In respect of two associates, those financial statements have been audited by 

other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and in respect 

of one associate, the financial information has been furnished to us by the management. 

Our report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the IFCoFR for the Company, 

and its associate company, which is a company incorporated in India, under Section 

143(3)(i) of the Act insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate company, which is 

company incorporated in India, is solely  based on the corresponding report of the 

auditor of such company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter with 

respect to our reliance on the work done by and the report of the other auditor. 

 

 

For RAY & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.: 313124E 

 
 

 

 

Subrata Roy 

Partner 

M. No. 051205 

UDIN: 23051205BGYGBK7429 

 
Place: Kolkata 

Date: 23rd May,2023 
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